UNI TED STATES OF AMER CA
FEDERAL TRADE COW SS| ON

)
In The Matter of )
) File Nos. 9523200 and
SUNTRUP BU CK- PONTI AG- GMC ) 9523201
TRUCK, I NC. and )
SUNTRUP FCRD, | NC., ) AGREEMENT CONTAI NI NG
cor porations, and ) CONSENT CRDER
)
THOVAS SUNTRUP, )
individually and as an )
officer of the corporations. )

)

The Federal Trade Comm ssion has conducted an investigation
of certain acts and practices of Suntrup Buick-Pontiac- GVC Truck
Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc., corporations, and Thomas Suntr up,
individually and as an officer of the corporations ("proposed
respondents”). Proposed respondents, having been represented by
counsel, are willing to enter into an agreenent containing a
consent order resolving the allegations contained in the attached
draft conplaint. Therefore,

| T 1S HEREBY AGREED by and between Suntrup Bui ck-Pontiac- GMC
Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc., by their duly authorized
officers, and Thomas Suntrup, individually and as an officer of
the corporations, and counsel for the Federal Trade Comm ssion
t hat:

1.a. Proposed respondent Suntrup Buick-Pontiac-GVC Truck, Inc. is
a Del aware corporation with its principal office or place of
busi ness at 4200 N Service Road, Saint Peters, Mssouri 63376.

1.b. Proposed respondent Suntrup Ford, Inc. is a Mssouri
corporation with its principal office or place of business at
12750 Saint Charles Rock Road, Bridgeton, Mssouri 63044.

1.c. Proposed respondent Thonmas Suntrup is an officer of the
corporate respondents. Individually or in concert with others,
he formul ates, directs, or controls the policies, acts, or
practices of the corporations. Hs principal offices or places
of business are the same as those of Suntrup Bui ck-Pontiac- GVC
Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc.



2. Proposed respondents admt all the jurisdictional facts set
forth in the draft conplaint.

3. Proposed respondents wai ve:
a. Any further procedural steps;
b. The requirenment that the Comm ssion's decision contain
a statenent of findings of fact and concl usions of |aw
and
C. Al rights to seek judicial review or otherw se to

chall enge or contest the validity of the order entered
pursuant to this agreenent.

4, Thi s agreenent shall not becone part of the public record of
the proceeding unless and until it is accepted by the Conm ssion.
If this agreenment is accepted by the Coomssion, it, together
with the draft conplaint, will be placed on the public record for
a period of sixty (60) days and information about it publicly

rel eased. The Comm ssion thereafter nmay either wthdraw its
acceptance of this agreenent and so notify proposed respondents,
in which event it will take such action as it may consi der
appropriate, or issue and serve its conplaint (in such formas
the circunstances may require) and decision in disposition of the
pr oceedi ng.

5. This agreenent is for settlenment purposes only and does not
constitute an adm ssion by proposed respondents that the | aw has
been violated as alleged in the draft conplaint, or that the
facts as alleged in the draft conplaint, other than the
jurisdictional facts, are true.

6. This agreenent contenplates that, if it is accepted by the
Comm ssion, and if such acceptance is not subsequently wi thdrawn
by the Conm ssion pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.34 of
the Commssion's Rules, the Comm ssion may, w thout further
notice to proposed respondents, (1) issue its conplaint
corresponding in formand substance with the attached draft
conplaint and its decision containing the follow ng order in

di sposition of the proceeding, and (2) nake information about it
public. Wien so entered, the order shall have the sanme force and
effect and may be altered, nodified, or set aside in the sane
manner and within the same tine provided by statute for other
orders. The order shall becone final upon service. Delivery of
the conplaint and the decision and order to proposed respondents
by any neans specified in Section 4.4 of the Coomssion's Rul es
shal|l constitute service. Proposed respondents waive any right
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they may have to any other manner of service. The conplaint nmay
be used in construing the terns of the order. No agreenent,

under standi ng, representation, or interpretation not contained in
the order or in the agreenent nay be used to vary or contradict
the terns of the order.

7. Proposed respondents have read the draft conplaint and

consent order. They understand that they nay be liable for civil

penalties in the amount provided by | aw and ot her appropriate

relief for each violation of the order after it becones final.
ORDER

DEFI NI TI ONS

For the purposes of this order, the follow ng definitions
shal | apply:

1. "G early and conspi cuously" shall nean as foll ows:

a. In a television or video advertisenent, the audio
di scl osure shall be delivered in a vol une and cadence
sufficient for an ordi nary consuner to hear and
conprehend it. The video disclosure shall be of a size
and shade, and shal|l appear on the screen for a
duration, sufficient for an ordinary consuner to read
and conprehend it.

b. In a print advertisenent, the disclosure shall be in a
type size, location, and in print that contrasts wth
t he background agai nst which it appears, sufficient for
an ordinary consuner to notice, read, and conprehend
it.

C. In a radi o adverti senent, the disclosure shall be
delivered in a volunme and cadence sufficient for an
ordi nary consuner to hear and conprehend it.

Not hi ng contrary to, inconsistent with, or in mtigation of the
di scl osure shall be used in any advertisenent.

2. "Equal prom nence" shall nean as foll ows:

a. In a television or video advertisenent, the video
di scl osure shall be presented in the sane or simlar
format, including but not necessarily limted to type
si ze, shade, contrast, duration, and placenent. The
audi o di sclosure shall be delivered in the sane or
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simlar manner, including but not necessarily limted
to vol unme, cadence, pace, and pl acenent.

b. In a print advertisenent, the disclosure shall be
presented in the same or simlar format, including but
not necessarily limted to type size, shade, contrast,
and pl acenent .

C. In a radi o advertisenent, the disclosure shall be
delivered in the sane or simlar manner, including but
not necessarily limted to vol une, cadence, pace, and
pl acenent .

Not hi ng contrary to, inconsistent with, or in mtigation of the
di scl osure shall be used in any advertisenent.

3. "Total anmount due at |ease inception"” shall nean the tota
amount of any initial paynments required to be paid by the | essee
on or before consummation of the | ease or delivery of the
vehi cl e, whichever is later.

4. "Commer ce" shall nmean as defined in Section 4 of the Federa
Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S.C. § 44.

5. Unl ess ot herwi se specified, “respondents” shall mean Suntrup
Bui ck- Ponti ac- GMC Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc.,
corporations, their successors and assigns and their officers;
Thomas Suntrup, individually and as an officer of the
corporations; and each of the above’s agents, representatives,

and enpl oyees.

| T 1S ORDERED that respondents, directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or any other device, in
connection with any adverti senent to pronote, directly or
indirectly, any consuner |ease in or affecting comrerce, as
“advertisenment” and “consuner |ease” are defined in Section 213.2
of Regulation M 12 CF. R 8§ 213.2, as anended, shall not, in any
manner, expressly or by inplication:

A M srepresent the costs of |easing a vehicle, including
but not necessarily limted to the total anmount due at
| ease i nception.

B. State any anount due at | ease inception (or that no

such anount is required), except for the statenent of a
peri odi ¢ paynent, unless the advertisenment al so states
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wi th equal prom nence the total anmount due at | ease
i nception.

C State the anobunt of any paynent, the nunber of required
paynents, or that any or no downpaynent or ot her
paynent is required at consummation of the | ease unless
all of the following itens are disclosed, clearly and
conspi cuously, as required by Regulation M as anended:

(1) that the transaction advertised is a |ease;

(2) the total anount of any paynent such as a security
deposit or capitalized cost reduction required at the
consummation of the | ease, or that no such paynents are
required;

(3) the nunber, anmounts, due dates or periods of
schedul ed paynents, and the total of such paynents
under the |ease;

(4) a statenment of whether or not the | essee has
the option to purchase the | eased property and at
what price and tine (the nethod of determning the
price may be substituted for disclosure of the
price); and

(5) a statenent of the anount or method of determ ning
the anount of any liabilities the | ease i nposes upon
the lessee at the end of the termand a statenent that
the | essee shall be liable for the difference, if any,
bet ween the estimated val ue of the | eased property and
its realized value at the end of the lease term if the
| essee has such liability.

For all |ease advertisenents, respondents nmay conply with
the requirenments of this subparagraph by utilizing Section
184(a) of the Consumer Leasing Act ("CLA'), 15 U S. C

8 1667c(a), as anmended by Title Il, Section 2605 of the

QOmi bus Consol i dated Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year

1997, Pub. L. No. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, 3009-473 (Sept.
30, 1996) (to be codified at 15 U S.C. 8§ 1667c(a)) (" Section
184(a) of the revised CLA"), as anended, or by utilizing
Section 213.7(d) of revised Regulation M 61 Fed. Reg.

52246, 52261 (Cctober 7, 1996) and 62 Fed. Reg. 15364, 15368
(Apr. 1, 1997) (to be codified at 12 CF. R § 213.7(d))
("revised Regulation M), as anmended. For radio | ease
advertisenments, respondents may al so conply with the

requi renents of this subparagraph by utilizing Section
184(b) of the LA 15 U S.C 8§ 1667c(b), as anended by Title
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I, Section 2605 of the Qmi bus Consol i dated Appropriations
Act for Fiscal Year 1997, Pub. L. No. 104-208, 110 Stat.
3009, 3009-473 (Sept. 30, 1996)(to be codified at 15 U S. C
8 1667c(c))("Section 184(c) of the revised CLA"), as
amended, or by utilizing Section 213.7(f) of revised

Regul ation M (to be codified at 12 CF. R 8§ 213.7(f)), as
amended. For television | ease advertisenents, respondents
may al so conply with the requirenents of this subparagraph
by utilizing Section 213.7(f) of revised Regulation M as
amended.

D. Fail to conply in any other respect with Regul ation M
12 CF.R 8 213, as anended, and the CLA 15 U S.C
88 1667-1667e, as anended. Respondents rmay conply with
the requirenents of this subparagraph by utilizing
revised Regulation M 61 Fed. Reg. 52246 (Cct. 7, 1996)
and 62 Fed. Reg. 15364 (Apr. 1, 1997) (to be codified
at 12 CF. R 8§ 213), as anended.

I T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondents, directly or through
any corporation, subsidiary, division, or any other device, in
connection with any advertisenent to pronote, directly or
indirectly, any extension of consunmer credit in or affecting
commerce, as “advertisenment” and “consuner credit” are defined in
Section 226.2 of Regulation Z 12 CF. R 8§ 226.2, as anended,
shall not, in any manner, expressly or by inplication:

A State the anobunt or percentage of any downpaynent, the
nunber of paynments or period of repaynent, the anount
of any paynment, or the anmount of any finance charge,
wi t hout disclosing clearly and conspicuously all of the
terns required by Section 144 of the Truth in Lendi ng
Act ("TILA"), 15 U S C 8§ 1664, as anmended, and Section
226.24(c) of Regulation Z, 12 CF. R 8§ 226.24(c), as
amended, as nore fully set out in Section 226.24(c) of
the Federal Reserve Board's Oficial Staff Commentary
to Regulation Z, 12 CF. R 8§ 226.24(c), as anended, as

fol | ows:
1. t he anount or percentage of the downpaynent;
2. the terns of repaynent, including but not

necessarily limted to the anount of any bal | oon
paynent; and

3. t he annual percentage rate, using that termor the
abbreviation “APR” |f the annual percentage rate
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may be increased after consunmmati on of the credit
transaction, that fact nust al so be discl osed.

B. State a rate of finance charge without stating the rate
as an “annual percentage rate” or the abbreviation
“APR " using that term as required by Section 144 of
the TILA 15 U S.C 8§ 1664, as anended, and Section
226. 24(b) of Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226.24(b), as
amended, as nore fully set out in Section 226.24(b) of
the Federal Reserve Board's Oficial Staff Commentary
to Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226.24(b), as anmended.

C Fail to conply in any other respect with Regul ation Z,
12 CF.R 8 226, as anended, and the TILA 15 U S. C
88 1601- 1667, as anended.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondents Suntrup Bui ck-
Ponti ac- GMC Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc., and their
successors and assi gns, and respondent Thonas Suntrup shall, for
five (5) years after the |ast date of dissemnation of any
representati on covered by this order, maintain and upon request
make avail able to the Federal Trade Comm ssion for inspection and
copying all records that will denonstrate conpliance with the
requi renents of this order

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondents Suntrup Bui ck-
Ponti ac- GMC Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc., and their
successors and assi gns, and respondent Thonas Suntrup shal
deliver a copy of this order to all current and future
principals, officers, directors, and nmanagers, and to all current
and future enpl oyees, agents, and representatives having
responsibilities with respect to the subject matter of this
order, and shall secure fromeach such person a signed and dated
st at enent acknowl edgi ng recei pt of the order. Respondents shal
deliver this order to such current personnel within thirty (30)
days after the date of service of this order, and to such future
personnel within thirty (30) days after the person assumes such
position or responsibilities.

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondents Suntrup Bui ck-
Ponti ac- GMC Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc., and their
successors and assigns, shall notify the Conm ssion at | east
thirty (30) days prior to any change in the corporations that nay
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affect conpliance obligations arising under this order, including
but not necessarily limted to a dissolution, assignnent, sale,
nmerger, or other action that would result in the energence of a
successor corporation; the creation or dissolution of a
subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or
practices subject to this order; the proposed filing of a
bankruptcy petition; or a change in the corporate nane or

addr ess. Provi ded, however , that, with respect to any proposed
change in the corporation about which respondents |earn | ess than
thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to take pl ace,
respondents shall notify the Comm ssion as soon as is practicable
after obtaining such know edge. Al notices required by this
Part shall be sent by certified nail to the Associate D rector,

D vision of Enforcenent, Bureau of Consuner Protection, Federal
Trade Comm ssion, Washington, D.C 20580.

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondent Thomas Suntrup, for a
period of ten (10) years after the date of issuance of this
order, shall notify the Comm ssion of the discontinuance of his
current business or enploynent, or of his affiliation with any
new busi ness or enpl oynent invol ving the advertising and/ or
extension of a "consuner |lease," as that termis defined in the
CLA and its inplenmenting Regulation M or the advertising and/ or
extension of "consuner credit,"” as that termis defined in the
TILA and its inplenenting Regulation Z  The notice shall include
respondent’' s new busi ness address and tel ephone nunber and a
description of the nature of the business or enploynent and his
duties and responsibilities. Al notices required by this Part
shall be sent by certified mail to the Associate D rector,

D vision of Enforcenment, Bureau of Consuner Protection, Federal
Trade Comm ssion, Washington, D.C 20580.

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondents Suntrup Bui ck-
Ponti ac- GMC Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc., and their
successors and assigns, and respondent Thomas Suntrup shall,
within sixty (60) days after the date of service of this order,
and at such other tines as the Federal Trade Comm ssion nay
require, file with the Commssion a report, in witing, setting
forth in detail the manner and formin which it has conplied with
this order.
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V.

This order will termnate twenty (20) years fromthe date of
its issuance, or twenty (20) years fromthe nost recent date that
the United States or the Federal Trade Commssion files a
conplaint (with or without an acconpanyi ng consent decree) in
federal court alleging any violation of the order, whichever
cones later; provided, however , that the filing of such a
conmplaint will not affect the duration of:

A Any Part in this order that termnates in | ess than
twenty (20) years;

B. This order's application to any respondent that is not
named as a defendant in such conplaint; and

C This order if such conplaint is filed after the order
has termnated pursuant to this Part.

Provided, further , that if such conplaint is dismssed or a
federal court rules that the respondent did not violate any

provi sion of the order, and the dismssal or ruling is either not
appeal ed or upheld on appeal, then the order will term nate
according to this Part as though the conpl aint had never been
filed, except that the order will not termnate between the date
such conplaint is filed and the later of the deadline for
appeal i ng such dismssal or ruling and the date such di smssal or
ruling is upheld on appeal.

Signed this day of , 19

SUNTRUP BU CK- PONTI AG- GVC TRUCK,
| NC.

THOVAS SUNTRUP
Pr esi dent
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SUNTRUP FCRD, | NC.

THOVAS SUNTRUP
Pr esi dent

THOVAS SUNTRUP, i ndividually
and as an officer of the
cor por ati ons

PAUL SI MON, JR
Hel frey, Sinon, and Jones, P.C
Attorney for respondents

FEDERAL TRADE COW SS| ON

' LAUREN B. STEI NFELD
Counsel for the Federal Trade
Comm ssi on

APPROVED:

DAVI D MED NE
Associ ate D rector
Dvision of Gedit Practices

JOAN Z. BERNSTEI N
D rector
Bur eau of Consuner Protection

Page 10 of 11



UNI TED STATES OF AMER CA
FEDERAL TRADE COW SS| ON

In The Matter of
DOCKET NO
SUNTRUP BU CK- PONTI ACG- GMC
TRUCK, I NC. and
SUNTRUP FCRD, | NC.,

cor porations, and

THOVAS SUNTRUP,
individually and as an
officer of the corporations.

N N N N N N N N N N N N

QOWPLAI NT_

The Federal Trade Comm ssion, having reason to believe that
Suntrup Bui ck-Pontiac-GVC Truck, Inc. and Suntrup Ford, Inc.
corporations, and Thomas Suntrup, individually and as an officer
of the corporations (“respondents”), have violated the provisions
of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U S.C 88 45-58, as
anended, the Consuner Leasing Act, 15 U S.C. 88 1667-1667e, as
amended, and its inplenenting Regulation M 12 CF. R § 213, as
amended, and the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U S. C. 88 1601-1667, as
amended, and its inplenenting Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226, as
amended, and it appearing to the Conm ssion that this proceedi ng
isinthe public interest, alleges:

1. Respondent Suntrup Bui ck-Pontiac-GMC Truck, Inc. is a
Del anare corporation with its principal office or place of
busi ness at 4200 N Service Road, St. Peters, Mssouri 63376.
Respondent offers autonobiles for sale or | ease to consuners.

2. Respondent Suntrup Ford, Inc. is a Mssouri corporation with
its principal office or place of business at 12750 Saint Charles
Rock Road, Bridgeton, M ssouri 63044. Respondent offers

aut onobil es for sale or |ease to consuners.

3. Respondent Thomas Suntrup is an officer of the corporate
respondents. Individually or in concert with others, he

formul ates, directs, or controls the policies, acts, or practices
of the corporations, including the acts or practices alleged in
this conplaint. Hs principal offices or places of business are



the sane as those of Suntrup Buick-Pontiac-GVC Truck, Inc. and
Suntrup Ford, Inc.

4. Respondent s have di ssem nated adverti senents to the public
that pronote consuner |eases, as the terns "advertisenent" and
"consuner | ease" are defined in Section 213.2 of Regulation M
12 CF.R 8 213.2, as anended.

5. Respondent s have di ssem nated adverti senents to the public
that pronote credit sales and ot her extensions of closed-end
credit in consunmer credit transactions, as the terns
"advertisenment,"” "credit sale,"” and "consuner credit" are defined
in Section 226.2 of Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226.2, as anended.

6. The acts and practices of respondents alleged in this
conpl ai nt have been in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is
defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act,

15 U S C 8§ 44.

LEASE ADVERTI SI NG

7. Respondent s have di ssem nated or have caused to be

di ssem nat ed consuner |ease advertisenents (“l ease
advertisenments”) for autonobiles in the print nmedia, including
but not necessarily limted to the attached Exhibits A through E
These | ease advertisenents contain the follow ng statenents:

A “NO PAYMENT TIL APRL ‘95
‘95 GRAND AM SEDAN
$225** per no. |ease”

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“**36 no. |l ease with 10% of MSRP cap reduction plus
first paynent sec. deposit & license plus tax with
12,000 m. per yr. and approved credit.”]

* * *



“NO PAYMENT TIL APR L '95
1995 THUNDERBI RD LX .
$275** per no. |ease"

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“**24 no. | ease with 10% of MSRP cap reduction plus
first paynent sec. dep. & license plus tax with 15, 000
m. per year and approved credit.”] (Exhibit A)

“NO PAYMENT TIL APRIL '95
'95 BONNEVI LLE SE SEDAN .
$281** per no. |ease"

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“**36 no. |l ease with 10% of MSRP cap reduction plus
first paynent sec. deposit & license plus tax with
12,000 m. per yr. and approved credit.”]

* * *

“1994 ESCORT LX
$178** per no. |ease”

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“**24 no. | ease with 10% of MSRP cap reduction plus
first paynent sec. dep. & license plus tax wth 15, 000
m . per year and approved credit.”] (Exhibit B)

“1995 PONTI AC GRAND AM OOUPE .
LEASE $188** 36 MONTHS'

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“*Al prices include all rebates and incentives, and
conmer ci al rebates where applicable. For conv. vans
add $799 for trimkit. Vehicle pictures nmay differ
fromactual pictures. 10%of MSRP cap reduction plus
first paynent sec. deposit and license plus tax with
12,000 mles per year and approved credit.”]

* * *

“LEASE $249** PER MO
$13, 999*



1995 TAURUS’

[Afine print statement at the |ower right hand corner
of the ad states, “** 24 no. Lease with 10% of NMSRP cap
reduction plus first paynent sec. dep & |icense plus
tax with 15,000 m. per year and approved

credit.”] (Exhibit O

D. “NO PAYMENT TIL MARCH ' 95
'95 GRAND AM COUPE SE .
LEASE $262** per no."

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“**36 no. | ease with 10% of MSRP cap reduction plus
first paynent sec. deposit & license plus tax with
15,000 m. per yr. and approved credit.”] (Exhibit D

* * *

“$1995 PRCBE
LEASE $215** PER MD”

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad
states,” **24 no. |lease wth 10% of MSRP cap reduction
plus first paynment sec. dep. & license plus tax with
15,000 m. per year and approved credit.”] (Exhibit D

E “*95 CENTURY SEDAN
$249** per no. |ease”

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“**36 no. |l ease with 10% of MSRP cap reduction plus
first paynent sec. deposit & license plus tax with
15,000 m. per yr. and approved credit.”] (Exhibit E)

FEDERAL TRADE COWMM SSI ON ACT VI ALATI ONS
Count |: Msrepresentation of |nception Fees

8. In | ease advertisenents, including but not necessarily
limted to Exhibits A B, and D, respondents have represented,
expressly or by inplication, that consuners have no nonetary
obligations at |ease signing, including no obligation to pay a
peri odi ¢ paynent.

9. In truth and in fact, consumers are required to pay
significant anounts at |ease signing, including but not limted
to one or nore of the follow ng: a downpaynent, security deposit,
docunentary fee, a periodic paynent, and taxes. Therefore,
respondents' representation as alleged in Paragraph 8 was, and
is, false or m sl eading.



10. Respondents' practices constitute deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a)
of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S.C 8§ 45(a).

Count Il: Failure to D sclose Adequately | nception Fees

11. In lease advertisenents, including but not necessarily
limted to Exhibits A through E, respondents have represented,
expressly or by inplication, that consuners can | ease the
advertised vehicles at the terns promnently stated in the
advertisenents, including but not necessarily limted to the
nont hl y paynment anount.

12. These | ease advertisenents do not adequately disclose
additional terns pertaining to obligations at |ease inception,

i ncluding but not necessarily [imted to one or nore of the
followi ng charges: a required downpaynent, security deposit,
docunentary fee, first nmonth's paynent, and taxes. This
information does not appear at all, appears in very fine print,
and/or is referenced by asterisks that do not correspond to the
asterisks depicted in the nmain text of the advertisenents.

13. These additional terns would be naterial to consuners in
deciding whether to visit respondents’ deal ership and/ or whet her
to | ease an autonobile fromrespondents. The failure to disclose
adequately these additional terns, in light of the representation
made, was, and is, a deceptive practice.

14. Respondents' practices constitute deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a)
of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S.C 8§ 45(a).



CONSUMER LEASI NG ACT AND REGULATI ON M VI OLATI ONS
Count Il1l: Failure to D sclose Required |Infornation
Jearly and Conspi cuously

15. In |ease advertisenents, including but not necessarily
l[imted to Exhibits A through E respondents have stated a
nmont hly paynment anmount and/or the nunber of required payments.

16. These | ease advertisenents have failed to disclose clearly
and conspi cuously the following itens of information required by
Regulation M the total anount of any paynent such as a security
deposit or capitalized cost reduction required at the
consummation of the | ease or that no such paynents are required;
the total of schedul ed paynents due under the | ease; a statenent
of whether or not the | essee has the option to purchase the

| eased property and at what price and tinme or, in lieu of

di scl osure of the price, the nmethod of determ ning the purchase-
option price; and a statenment of the amount or method of
determning the amount of any liabilities the | ease inposes upon
the lessee at the end of the term

17. Respondents' practices have violated Section 184 of the
Consuner Leasing Act, 15 U S.C 8 1667c, and Section 213.5(c) of
Regulation M 12 CF. R § 213.5(c).

CREDI T ADVERTI SI NG

18. Respondents have di ssem nated or have caused to be
dissemnated credit sale advertisenents ("credit advertisenents")
for autonobiles in the print media, including but not necessarily
l[imted to the attached Exhibits A, B, and E. These
advertisenments contain the follow ng statenents:

A “'95 FIREBIRDS . . . $17,995*”

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“*Al prices include all rebates & incentives. A so

i ncl udes $1000 cash or trade equity and commerci al
rebates where applicable. . .”] (Exhibit A

B. ““95 SONOVA . . . $13,995*”
[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“*Al prices include all rebates & incentives. A so

i ncl udes $1000 cash or trade equity and commerci al
rebates where applicable. . .7]

* * *

"FORD CARS 3. 9% FI NANGI NG' ( Exhi bit B)



C Along with the statenents described in Paragraph 5,
Exhibit C contains the following credit terns,
"6.75% A P.R FI NANCI NG ON CONTOURS for 48 Mds. PLUS
$500 REBATE"

* * *

" 3. 9% FI NANCI NG or $600 REBATE .
1995 RANGER XLT"

(Exhibit O
D.  "2.9%APR FI NANCI NG FOR 48 MONTHS OR $750 CASH BACK
' 95 FORD TAURUS'
(Exhibit D)
E “*95 BONNEVILLE SE SEDAN .

3. 6% FI NANCI NG Avai | abl e on. annevi Iles .
$18,995*" [A bar is superinposed over this sale price
figure that states “MAKE US AN CFFER "]

[Afine print statement at the bottomof the ad states,
“***$1000 DOMN CASH CR TRADE EQU TY. FCR QUALI FI ED

FI RST TI ME NEW CAR CR TRUCK BUYERS & GMC REBATE. "]
(Exhibit E)

TRUTH I N LENDI NG ACT AND REGULATI ON Z VI ALATI ONS
Count IV: Failure to D sclose Required I nfornation

19. In credit advertisenents, including but not necessarily
l[imted to Exhibits A through E respondents have stated the
amount of a downpaynent and/or the nunber of paynents or period
of repaynment as terns for financing the purchase of the
advertised vehicl es.

20. These advertisenents have failed to disclose the foll ow ng



itens of information required by Regulation Z: the anount or

per cent age of the downpaynent, the terns of repaynent, and/or the
“annual percentage rate,” using that termand if the rate nay be
i ncreased after consunmation, that fact.

21. Respondents' practices have violated Section 144 of the
Truth in Lending Act ("TILA"), 15 U.S.C § 1664, and Section
226.24(c) of Regulation Z, 12 CF.R § 226.24(c).

Count V: Failure to State Rate of Fi nance Charge as
an Annual Percentage Rate

22. In credit advertisenents, including but not necessarily
limted to Exhibits B, C and E, respondents have stated a rate
of finance charge wi thout stating that rate as an "annual
percentage rate," using that termor the abbreviation "APR " as
required by Regul ation Z

23. Respondents' practices have violated Section 144 of the

TILA, 15 U S C 8§ 1664, and Section 226.24(b) of Regulation Z,
12 CF.R 8 226. 24(Db).

THEREFORE, the Federal Trade Commssion this  day of
, 1997, has issued this conplaint agai nst respondents.
By the Conm ssi on.
Donald S. dark
Secretary
SEAL:

[ Exhibits A-E attached to paper copies of conplaint, but not
avail able in electronic form]



